
DISTRICT OF HUDSON’S HOPE AGENDA 
Council Chambers 
Tuesday, September 6, 2022 

First Nations Acknowledgement 

The District of Hudson’s Hope would like to respectfully acknowledge that the land on 
which we gather is in traditional unceded territory of the Treaty 8 First Nations. 

1. Call to Order:

2. Dedication Page:

3. Delegations:

D1 STARS Foundation - Glenda Farnden, Senior Municipal Relations Liaison 
(Powerpoint Presentation) 

4. Notice of New Business:
Mayor’s List:
Councillors Additions:
CAO’s Additions:

5. Adoption of Agenda by Consensus:

6. Declaration of Conflict of Interest:

7. Adoption of Minutes:

M1 Regular Council Minutes – August 22, 2022 Page 1 

8. Business Arising from the Minutes:

9. Public Hearing:

10. Staff Reports:

SR1 Water Treatment Plant – Update & Sole Source Purchases Page 5 

SR2 Architectural Services – New Community Hall Page 7 

SR3 Grant in Aid – Hudson’s Hope Fall Fair Society & 
Peace Valley Arts Society Page 17 



District of Hudson’s Hope September 6, 2022 
Council Meeting Agenda Page 2 

11. Committee Meeting Reports:

12. Bylaws

13. Correspondence:

C1 Thrift Store Fundraiser Page 42 

14. Reports by Mayor & Council on Meetings and Liaison Responsibilities:

15. Old Business:

16. New Business:

17. Public Inquiries:

18. In-Camera Session

ICSR1 Notice to Closed Meeting Page 44 

19. Adjournment



S .s 
SR   

COUNCIL MEETING 
District Office – Council Chambers 

6:00 P.M. 
August 22, 2022 

Present: Mayor Dave Heiberg 
Councillor Mattias Gibbs 
Councillor Kelly Miller 
Councillor Leigh Summer 

Absent: Councillor Val Paice (with notice) 
Councillor Travous Quibell (without notice) 

Staff: Acting Chief Administrative Officer, Ruhul Amin 
Corporate Officer, Jeanette McDougall 
Director, Protective Services, Brad Milton 

1. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. with Mayor Heiberg presiding.

2. DEDICATION PAGE

3. DELEGATIONS

4. NOTICE OF NEW BUSINESS
Mayor’s Additions: C4 Letter of Support re BC Hydro GO Fund - Fall Fair Society 
Councillor’s Additions: NB1 Electronic Council Meeting Participation - Councillor Gibbs 

NB2 Social Media Policy - Councillor Miller 
CAOs Additions: None 

5. ADOPTION OF AGENDA BY CONSENSUS

6. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

7. ADOPTION OF MINUTES

M1 REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES – July 18, 2022

RESOLUTION NO. 125/2022 
M/S Councillors Miller / Gibbs 
THAT the minutes of the July 18, 2022 Regular Council Meeting be adopted as 
presented. 
CARRIED 

8. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
The Director, Public Works provided an update regarding a proposed new Community Hall
and referenced that a Request for Proposal for architectural plans was being developed.

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 1 of 44

M1



District of Hudson's Hope Monday, August 22, 2022 
Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 4 

9. PUBLIC HEARING

10. STAFF REPORTS

SR1 HUDSON’S HOPE LIONS CLUB AGREEMENT

RESOLUTION NO. 126/2022 
M/S Councillors 
THAT Council approve the Building Lease Agreement between the District of 
Hudson’s Hope and the Lions Club for a term of 5 years commencing May 1, 
2022 and expiring April 30, 2027; and 

THAT Council authorize the Mayor and the Acting CAO to sign the Building 
Lease Agreement. 
CARRIED 

Note:  the Hudson’s Hope Lions Club Agreement was included in the Council 
Agenda dated July 18, 2022, however was deferred due to lack of quorum;   
Council subsequently approved via an electronic vote and this Agreement was 
included on the August 22, 2022 Agenda for formal ratification. 

SR2 CORPORATE – MONTHLY REPORT 
The Corporate Officer provided an overview and a verbal update on the 
upcoming 2022 Local Government Election.  

SR3 PUBLIC WORKS – MONTHLY REPORT 
The Director, Public Works provided an overview, including an update on the 
Water Treatment Plant as follows:  the schedule for cleaning and repairs; that the 
new pre-filter system will be able to auto-backwash;  and that venting has been 
adjusted to disperse upward and this is expected to help reduce the odour.  The 
Mayor noted that the District is liaising with BC Hydro regarding costs, that water 
sample results are posted on the District website, and that this situation has been 
very stressful on District Staff.  

SR4 PROTECTIVE SERVICES – MONTHLY REPORT 
The Director, Public Works provided an overview, including responding to Council 
inquiries regarding recent break-ins at the Public Works Shop. 

SR5 SPECIAL PROJECTS – MONTHLY REPORT 
Received for Information. 

11. COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS

12. BYLAWS

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 2 of 44



District of Hudson's Hope Monday, August 22, 2022 
Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 4 

13. CORRESPONDENCE

C1 SPONSORSHIP REQUEST – PEACE VALLEY ARTS SOCIETY

RESOLUTION NO. 127/2022 
M/S Councillors Miller / Gibbs 
THAT Council approves the request from the Peace Valley Arts Society to cover 
the costs for a band (Sweet Alibi), along with one night of accommodation, in the 
amount of $890.00 in support of a fund-raiser being held October 5, 2022. 
CARRIED 
Councillor Miller opposed 

C2 LETTER OF APPRECIATION – HUDSON’S HOPE FIRE DEPARTMENT 
Received for Information. 

C3 BC HYDRO – WATSON SLOUGH WATER LEVELS 
Received for Information. 

C4 LETTER OF SUPPORT RE GRANT APPLICATION - PEACE VALLEY FALL FAIR 

RESOLUTION NO. 128/2022 
M/S Councillors Miller / Gibbs 
THAT Council approves the request from the Peace Valley Fall Fair Society for a 
letter of support for their grant application to the BC Hydro GO Fund. 
CARRIED 

14. REPORTS BY MAYOR & COUNCIL ON MEETINGS AND LIAISON RESPONSIBILITIES

15. OLD BUSINESS

16. NEW BUSINESS

NB1 COUNCIL MEETING PARTICIPATION - COUNCILLOR GIBBS
Councillor Gibbs advised that he is moving to another community and will participate 
in the remaining Council meetings via electronic means. 

NB2 SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY - COUNCILLOR MILLER 
Councillor Miller requested that the District’s Social Media Policy be posted to the 
District website. 

17. PUBLIC INQUIRIES

18. IN-CAMERA SESSION

RESOLUTION NO. 129/2022
M/S Councillors Summer / Miller
THAT Council move to a Closed Meeting for the purpose of discussing the following items:

• Community Charter Section 97 (1) (b):
(b) all minutes of Council meetings, other than a meeting or part of a meeting that is closed

to the public

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 3 of 44



District of Hudson's Hope Monday, August 22, 2022 
Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 4 

 Closed Meeting Minutes – July 18, 2022

• Community Charter Section 90 (1) (k):
(k) negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed provision of a municipal

service that are at their preliminary stages and that, in the view of Council, could
reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the municipality if they were held in
Public;
 Hudson’s Hope Public Library Association – Funding & Service Agreement

CARRIED  

19. RISE AND REPORT

RESOLUTION NO. IC046/22
M/S Councilors Miller / Gibbs
THAT Council approve the District to enter into the Hudson’s Hope Public Library
Association Funding and Service Agreement for 2022 – 2025;  and

THAT Council authorize the Mayor and the Corporate Officer to sign the Agreement on
behalf of the District.
CARRIED

20. ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Heiberg declared the meeting adjourned at 7:01 pm.

DIARY Diarized 

Conventions/Conferences/Holidays 

Commercial Water Rate Increase-annual budget 
Consideration 08/04/19 

ATV Campground – Naming / Memorial Plaque 2022 

Certified Correct: 

_______________________ _______________________________ 
Dave Heiberg, Mayor  Jeanette McDougall, Corporate Officer 

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 4 of 44



Page 1 of 2 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

THAT Council receive this report for information and discussion, and 

THAT Council authorize the administration to engage Clear Blue Water Systems as a sole 
source contractor to perform the repair and maintenance work of the aerator, cistern and 
media sand, and perform the installation of the new pre-filters, and    

THAT Council authorize the administration to engage McElhanney for providing consulting 
services for the repair and installation of the new pre-filters. 

BACKGROUND: 

On July 20, 2022, the prefilters at the Water Treatment Plant (WTP) failed and were not able to 
treat the water. On July 21, 2022, the District started bottled water distribution to the 
community and hauling water to the reservoir. On the same day, District decided to bypass the 
raw water from the wells to the reservoir to increase the reservoir level and reduce water 
hauling. In consultation with Northern Health, the District, on August 6, 2022, issued a “Do Not 
Consume” water notice. 

DISCUSSION: 

The "Do Not Consume” water notice is in effect until further notice. 

Updates on repairs of the WTP: 

• On an urgent basis, the District engaged Clear Blue Water Systems (the contractor) to help

with the repair work under the consulting services of McElhanney (the consultant)

• Clear Blue Water Systems started the Aerator filters change on Monday, August 29.

• It is expected that Aerator and Cistern will be cleaned and chlorinated by today (Thursday)

September 1, 2022.

• Changing media sand of pre-filters is planned on Tuesday, September 6, and Wednesday,

September 7, 2022.

• After finishing the mentioned jobs, the water works systems need to be tested. Northern

Health requires 2 batches of tests with certain intervals. Once NH is satisfied with the water

test reports they will advise the District to withdraw the current advisories.

• Staff are working with Northern Health on the next steps.

RFD#:  2022-MR-38 Date:  September 1, 2022 

Meeting#:     CM-090622 Originator: Mokles Rahman 

RFD TITLE:     Water Treatment Plan - Updates and Sole Source Purchases 

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 5 of 44

SR1



Page 2 of 2 

Things to do next: 

1. McElhanney recommended installing additional pre-filtration systems before the

Aerator to address Iron Reducing Bacteria buildups in the current well water.

2. McElhanney prepared a Request For Proposal (RFP) for designing and supplying these

new pre-filtration systems.

3. Staff are reviewing this RFP and will get back to McElhanney with comments soon.

4. As Clear Blue Water Systems has expertise and knowledge about our water system,

they are on board as a sole-sourced contractor to perform the installation of the new

pre-filtration systems pending approval from the Council and BC Hydro.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

The total costs of the project are unknown. Once we get proposals from the proponents on the 

design and supply of the new pre-filter, Clear Blue Water Systems will submit a quotation for 

their service. By this time, staff received a quotation from McElhanney which will be 

sharpened based on the scope of work of the contractors. 

The cost proposals will be presented to Council and BC Hydro for approval before awarding the 

contract. There is no approved budget for this project. The administration will try to recoup 

these costs from BC Hydro. 

Prepared by: 

___________________ 
Mokles Rahman, CAO 

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 6 of 44



Page 3 of 3 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

THAT Council approve the Scope of the Architectural Services for the New Community Hall. 

BACKGROUND: 

The District of Hudson’s Hope is planning for the replacement of the existing Community Hall 
and the District’s Library with a new combined Multi-Use Community Centre (MUCC), which 
houses a Public Library, Additional Meeting / Conference / Multiuse Spaces (conference 
capacity) and Cafeteria.  Other optional amenities are in Wishlist to house an Indoor Pool / 
Waterpark / Spa, Running Track, and a Children museum. 

The current Community Hall Building is to be replaced with a new two storey structure with a 
footprint not less than 14,000 Square feet by outside dimension (Approximately 28,000 Square 
feet total). 

The new Community Center building will be the focal point for year-round indoor community 
programming and events.  

DISCUSSION: 

Staff received some background information from the Community Hall Committee. All this 
background information will be part of RFP as appendices to make sure that the architect 
considers them in developing the concept designs for the project.   

On July 18 Council meeting, staff was directed to develop an RFP for the Architectural Services 
for the New Community Hall. Based on the background information and research on similar 
projects implemented by other municipalities, staff are recommending following scope for 
Architectural Services: 

Stage 1: 
In stage 1, the Architect will be assigned to complete Program & Scope Development 
Phase, Concept Design Phase, and Submission of Grant Applications. 

General Project Requirements 

The Architect shall:  
a) be responsible for providing expertise on sustainable design, following best practice

design strategies with a focus on environmentally friendly initiatives and renewable
energy alternatives.

b) conduct at least one (1) sustainability design workshop to finalize the projects
sustainability goals and targets. This will allow the District to explore sustainable features

RFD#:    2022RA21 Date:    August 31, 2022 
Meeting#:    CM090622 Originator: Ruhul Amin 
RFD TITLE:     Scope of the Architectural Services for the New Community Hall 

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 7 of 44

SR2



Page 3 of 3 

(along with associated costs) that will need to be incorporated into the design such as 
but not limited to energy efficiency and renewable energy systems, heat recovery, reuse 
of low-grade recycled heat, energy efficient lighting, low water consumption and other 
sustainable features (such as geothermal, etc.); Sustainability Best Practices are desired; 

c) attend and participate in bi-weekly / monthly meetings.
d) assist the District with the preparation of reports and presentations to the District Council,

District staff, public, and other project stakeholders/partners.
g) attend and participate in three (3) Community Hall Committee and two (2)

Council/General Committee meetings -allow for design presentations at these meetings.
h) when appropriate to the work stage lead walkthroughs of the site to explain the project

(minimum 2).
i) schedule, chair, and minute bi-weekly design team meetings and external stakeholder

meetings throughout the design; and
j) submit all minutes of meetings with clear actionable items within 72 hours of the meeting

to the District

Program & Scope Development Phase  
It is the Architect’s responsibility to develop functional program for the MUCC project. In 
connection with the development and finalization of the facility program, the Architect shall:  

a) visit the site to undertake detailed investigations, and audit existing conditions.
b) meet with user groups to understand known issues and review past reports and

information about the proposed site.
c) provide a functional site servicing report for distribution to the District; confirm the

suitability of existing site servicing and the requirements for all new and/or enhanced
services including, but not limited to, storm water management, sanitary, domestic water,
water pressure or hydro, gas, fiber or other required site servicing; provide; estimated
costs and governing regulations.

g) allow for meetings, and as required with the District’s Users, Library and the internal and
external stakeholders to review the facility program, gather any additional information,
refine, modify and customize the facility program.

h) lead an early visioning session that will include a public open house. The Architect shall
lead the session, record comments from the community and provide a report to the
District.

j) produce minutes of all program meetings identifying the actionable items and submit
these minutes to the District within 72 hours of each meeting.

k) research, review and compile background information relating to the site and adjacent
lands.

l) identify the need for additional studies and surveys as necessary and prepare scope of
work documents for this work to assist the District to engage the required studies and
surveys.

m) submit a proximity matrix for functional spaces complete with blocking and stacking
diagram(s), including options.

o) prepare and verify with project stakeholders, the furniture, fixtures and equipment (FF&E)
needs. Review the inventory list of existing furniture and equipment. This is to include a

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 8 of 44



Page 3 of 3 

verified list of any existing furniture that will be re-used along with the required FF&E 
items that are to be purchased by the District.  

p) prepare and verify with District stakeholders, the I.T, audio visual (AV) and security needs
and requirements for the project.

q) explore/consider sustainability Best Practice measures with District staff; make
recommendation on desired features.

r) provide a strategy to minimize energy use.
s) consider strategies for heat recovery.
v) submit a comprehensive facility program brief describing the program elements with an

Order of Magnitude cost estimate and present this to the District for approval.
w) at concept design provide a masterplan that accommodates future extension plan.

Concept Design Phase 
At concept design the Architect shall deliver three (3) design concepts which describe the form, 
size, character and massing of the facility based on the facility program. The District will select 
one concept, which will be progressively elaborated into schematic design.  

The Architect shall: 
a) submit three (3) conceptual master site plan(s) (identify advantages and disadvantages)

indicating proposed building, frontages, street access, outdoor facilities and parking. The
Architect shall consider the impact of the proposed building elevations and associated
services/amenities on the neighboring residents and include for suitable design mitigation
measures to address any concerns that may be raised, such as, visual, acoustic,
shadows, wind, pollution, etc.

b) attend meetings with the District of Hudson’s Hope staff to determine site restraints and
regulatory requirements which shall form the base of the concept plan.

c) prepare content and host a Public information Session for the community to provide
feedback.

d) submit concept plans and renderings of the building and site for the District’s review,
along with a narrative explaining advantages and disadvantages to illustrate the scale
and character of the project and how the parts of the project function, including but not
limited to;
i one electronic and four (4) hard copies (24”x36” drawings) 
ii site layout plans identifying zoning setbacks and height restrictions. 
iii spatial relationships of building(s) and site circulation diagrams including access, 

parking and landscaping. 
iv interior layouts. 
v exterior elevations. 
vi three dimensional (3-D) renderings of the exterior of the project. 
vii compliance with urban design guidelines. 
viii visual appearance from streets.  
ix design efficiencies with the Library (shared space); and  

e) deliver a concept design report to the District with the Options as noted.
f) attend Community Hall Committee Meeting and or Council to present and address

questions; and
g) the District will select and approve one of the three (3) concepts Options.

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 9 of 44



Page 3 of 3 

Grant Funding Application Phase 
Professional scope of services to include: 

• Explore all provincial and federal grants available for this project.
• Prepare and submit grant funding applications.
• In the case of the Federal Green Building Funding Initiative, a resilience assessment and

building energy model will be required.
• Estimated timeline of grant funding application preparation: 4 weeks (results of

applications will vary and will be outside of this timeline).

At this time, the District may decide to wait until funding has been procured before proceeding to 
Stage 2. 

Stage 2: 
Once the District secure the funding for the project, the Architect will be contracted for 
the Stage 2 of the project. Please note that contracting of the Stage 2 will be solely under 
District’s discretion.  

Schematic Design Phase  
Schematic design further develops the approved concepts.  Council will then decide which 
Option the District will proceed with into design development.  

The Architect shall: 
a) coordinate services of all consultants.
c) schedule, chair, and minute bi-weekly design team meetings with the District, sub-

consultants, and other specialist consultants.  Submit all minutes of meetings with clear
actionable items within 72 hours of the meeting to t the District.

d) review all applicable statutes, regulations, codes and by-laws.
e) review existing geotechnical, hydrogeological and/ or soils engineering reports, and

perform if additional geotechnical, hydrogeological and/ or soils investigations are
required.

f) organize one facility tour of similar facilities for District and Library user groups for review
of innovative and functional solutions.

g) apply for and obtain preliminary approvals from authorities having jurisdiction (via pre-
consultation meetings) for all planning, zoning, and building requirements.  These
authorities shall include the District of Hudson’s Hope and any other authorities having
jurisdiction.

h) provide a preliminary energy model report identifying opportunities over the life cycle for
cost savings. Provide the District with estimated energy saving, incremental costs and
life cycle saving due to implementation of:
• sustainability measures
• heat recovery
• dehumidification
• renewable energy
• solar hot water system

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 10 of 44



Page 3 of 3 

• geothermal energy
• photovoltaics

i) advise of available incentives for high performance new construction.
j) conduct at least one (1) sustainability design workshop and propose features that would

be appropriate for this project.
k) conduct a security review of the plans and bring forward Options for discussion.
l) create individual room data sheets for all distinct areas of the facility.
m) review and record on an approved electronic data base (e.g. Excel and AutoCAD) all

existing and proposed new furniture, fixtures and equipment that are to be included in
the final design to meet the District FF&E requirements.

o) prepare all application documents and provide the lead role to obtain approval of
authorities having jurisdiction for the Site Plan Application.

p) provide value engineering / analysis and cost reduction strategies and recommendations
to align the schematic design documents to the approved construction budget, implement
necessary document revisions.

q) prepare a design presentation package specific to the Library that illustrates the overall
site and building design and present to the Library Board.

r) provide design measures that address accessibility challenges.
s) recommend the most efficient structural system.
t) assess building systems for quality, durability, energy efficiency, functionality,

maintenance and operations.
u) deliver a storm water strategy.
v) present the design and cost estimate at project Community Hall Committee and Council

meetings for approval.
w) assess proposed waste diversion and management programs i.e. requirements for

dedicated waste storage rooms and loading space(s).  The District’s preference is an
internal waste management room with direct access to the loading space(s).  Coordinate
new waste/recycling receptacles for MUCC; and

x) submit a schematic design brief for the District to illustrate the scale and character of the
project and how the parts of the project function, including but not limited to:

i. provide six (6) hard copies (24” x 36” drawings) and one digital
ii. storm water management plan.
iii. provide area calculations.
iv. outline specifications to describe the size and character of the architectural,

structural; mechanical, and electrical systems.
v. describe the requirement for functional servicing.
vi. site plan.
vii. spatial relationship, adjacency and interior circulation diagrams.
viii. room data sheets for all distinct areas of the facility.
ix. principal floor plans.
x. building sections.
xi. exterior elevations.
xii. preliminary landscape and grading plan.
xiii. sustainability plan.
xiv. three dimensional (3-D) renderings of the exterior of the project and key

interior elements.

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 11 of 44



Page 3 of 3 

xv) One 3D printed model of the building scaled to overlay a site plan
xvi) design briefs.
xvii) constructability review report; and
xviii) obtain the District’s approval and award of Contract 2 before proceeding with

the design development phase.

Design Development Phase 
Design development further develops the schematic design based on the decision to proceed 
with approved Option. During design development specifications become an integral part of the 
design.    

The Architect shall. 
a) coordinate services of sub-consultants as applicable.
c) schedule, chair, and minute bi-weekly design team meetings with the District, sub-

consultants, and other specialists.  Submit all minutes of meetings with clear actionable
items within 72 hours of the meeting to the District.

d) continue to review and confirm that the design is in conformance with the facility program.
e) provide complete specifications for all building elements.
f) provide specifications for the demolition of the existing Community Hall.
g) update the room data sheets and arrange to have meetings for the purpose of finalizing

the details.
h) elaborate cut and fill requirements.
i) make Site Plan application (SAP).
j) prepare a presentation for the District of light fixtures, plumbing fixtures, millwork, signage

and related way-finding systems, all furnishings and proposed interior/exterior finishes.
k) submit a facility life cycle cost analysis to permit the District to assess the comparative

merits of alternative mechanical and electrical building systems.
m) as required, provide value engineering / analysis and cost reduction strategies and

recommendations; update the energy model accordingly.
n) provide fire safety plans.
p) further elaborate the design development documents for the District’s approval. This

would include the following:
• four (4) hard copies (24 x 36 drawings) and electronic (PDF).
• site plan.
• floor plans.
• building sections.
• exterior elevations.
• room data sheets identifying all proposed finish materials, IT, AV and Security

requirements.
• hoarding requirements and any temporary site access requirements.
• project brief detailing area calculations, building systems and design

specifications.
• any other documents that may be required, to describe the size and character of

the facility including the architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, civil, and
landscape aspects.

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 12 of 44



Page 3 of 3 

• three dimensional (3-D) renderings of the exterior of the project and key interior
elements.

• review of the class B estimate; and
• updated design briefs.

q) obtain the District’s approval before proceeding with the construction documents phase.

Tender Phase  

The Architect shall: 
a) assist the District in preparing a MMCD construction contract supplementary general

conditions.
b) submit for the District’s review the bid form (inclusive of any project specific alternates,

itemized and separate prices, etc.), instructions to bidders, and other contract documents
and revise the documents to incorporate the District’s comments.

c) act in an advisory role to the District who will tender the project and provide electronic
format copies of all related documents.

d) participate in the pre-tender “site walk” for bidders, respond to questions raised by
bidders and prepare addenda or clarifications for issue by the District to bidders in a
timely manner.

e) provide the District three (3) sets of Permit approved “issued for building permit” drawings
(drawings to be 24”x36”) and specifications and one (1) complete set (drawings 24”x36:)
for the successful general contractor, along with an electronic pdf set;

f) assist the District with the examination and evaluation of tenders, including valuation of
itemized prices and advise on acceptance.

g) provide support during the selection of the contractor including attending Community Hall
Committee and/or Council.

h) submit “issued for construction” set of drawings and specifications incorporating all
addenda and alternative approved items for review by the District and use for
construction by the successful General Contractor and provide the District with five (5)
complete sets (drawings to be 24”x36”) and the one (1) complete set (drawings to be
24”x36”) for the general contractor, along with a pdf set; and

i) provide five (5) sets of contract documents for contract execution of the District with the
successful General Contractor (drawings to be 24”x36”).

Construction Phase – Contract Administration 

The Architect shall:  
a) coordinate services of sub-consultants as applicable.
b) serve as the “Consultant” as per the MMCD Unit Price Contract.
c) distribute “issued for construction” set of drawings and specifications upon award of the

construction contract.
d) provide continuity of resources from the design phases.
e) attend bi-weekly construction meetings and specialty start up meetings on site, along

with the relevant sub-consultants.
f) submit for the review and approval of the District a quality assurance plan that details the

requirements for site reviews, testing, inspection, and other construction monitoring.

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 13 of 44



Page 3 of 3 

g) carry out and coordinate as applicable the general review of the work and include in each
field review detailed written comments on quality of work, adherence to technical
requirements, work deficiencies, and approve remedial action.

h) establish an electronic folder system where reports from the field will reside for the
District’s reference.

i) render interpretations regarding technical queries in written and graphic form as may be
required with reasonable promptness.

j) render written findings within a reasonable time on all claims, disputes and other matters
in question between the District and the General Contractor relating to the execution,
schedule or performance of the work or the interpretation of the contract documents.

k) render interpretations and findings consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable
from the contract documents.

l) review General Contractor’s submittals and/or shop drawings, product data, and
samples, for conformance with the design; maintain an electronic log to evidence the
status and disposition of shop drawings and another required contractor submittal.

m) prepare contemplated change notices (CCN), change directives (CD) and change orders
(CO) for the District’s recommendation and the District’s approval; maintain electronic
logs to accurately document the status of all CCN’s, CD’s and CO’s; Architect to provide
an estimated cost for each CCN. Provide rationale with each proposed change to District.

n) provide timely responses and reviews to General Contractor requests for information.
o) furnish supplemental instructions to the General Contractor with reasonable promptness

in accordance with a schedule for such instructions agreed by the Architect and the
General Contractor.

p) receive from the General Contractor and forward for the District’s review the written
warranties and related documents.

q) the Architect shall maintain an electronic record of changes as the project progresses.
r) monitor the testing and inspection program; review all reports and issue direction where

remedial action is necessary.
s) determine the amounts owing to the General Contractor based on the Architect’s

observations and evaluation of the General Contractor’s work.
t) review the General Contractor's draft invoice to confirm the value of work and note any

corrections.
u) issue a Certificate for Payment for the value of work completed each month within 10

days of receipt of the General Contractor's proper invoice.
v) determine the date of substantial performance, issue the appropriate certificate of

Substantial Performance of the Work and oversee the building handover to District.
w) perform required services to expedite granting of Building Occupancy including provision

of all required sign offs and certifications.
x) receive from the contractor the submittals that are listed in the construction contract to

be submitted with the request for the Architect to review for substantial performance.
y) create a comprehensive deficiency list (all disciplines) in addition to the list prepared by

the General Contractor and estimate values for finishing holdbacks.
z) to validate performance of the building systems in compliance with the District’s

expectations and with the Facility Program and with other design documents, employ an
independent commissioning consultant to provide comprehensive services related to the
commissioning of the building systems.

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 14 of 44



Page 3 of 3 

aa) coordinate the effort of the commissioning consultant to monitor the performance of all 
building systems (mechanical and electrical) through four (4) complete seasons 
(summer, fall, winter, spring), report to the District on compliance or non-compliance with 
the performance expectations. Provide necessary documentation and direction to the 
District’s staff or the sub-contractors with respect to correction of variances from 
performance expectations; and  

bb) receive from the General Contractor and review and approve the General Contractor’s 
as-built drawings and maintenance manuals, and provide to the District, a complete set 
of AutoCAD record drawings for all building systems and components in a format 
acceptable to the District. 

Project Close-out Phase  

The Architect shall:  
a) review for completeness the list of items to be completed or corrected submitted by the

contractor and forward to the District and contractor together with a list of any additional
items observed by the Architect.

b) forward submittals to the District for review with a written report listing any submittals listed
in the construction contract documents that have not been submitted.

c) where required submittals have not been submitted by the contractor, determine the
amount that will be retained from payments to the contractor in accordance with the
construction contract until the submittals are submitted.

d) actively follow up and support the General Contractor to achieve timely correction of
deficiencies by the General Contractor and address warranty item issues.

e) re-inspections as reasonably necessary to determine sufficiency of correction of
deficiencies by the General Contractor (allow minimum of two (2) additional site
inspections following the final deficiency review).

f) verify the validity of the General Contractor’s application for final payment and issue a
certificate for final payment.  This shall also include the subsequent release of any
maintenance holdback monies after the expiry of the warranty period.

g) during the warranty period review on site any defects or deficiencies which have been
observed and reported during that period, and advise the Contractor in writing to complete
these items; and

h) the Architect shall submit record drawings for the District’s use. Including one electronic
PDF copy and one editable CAD file (latest version, as per District standards) The PDF
copy is to be signed and dated by the Architect and Engineers.

Alternatives:  

1. Council approve the above scope.
2. Council direct staff to make changes on scope and report back to council with revised

Scope.

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 15 of 44



Page 3 of 3 

Financial: 

Costs associated with Stage 1 Architectural Services shall be covered from the Reserve Fund 
for New Community Building. Please note that as of December 2022 there is $150,000.00 
available in the reserve fund for this project. 

Staff will be reporting back to council for approval if there any costs over runs for this project. 

Prepared by: 

_________________________ 
Ruhul Amin, Director of Public Works 

Approved by: 

________________________ 
Mokles Rahman, CAO 

Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 16 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 17 of 44

SR3



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 18 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 19 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 20 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 21 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 22 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 23 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 24 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 25 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 26 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 27 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 28 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 29 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 30 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 31 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 32 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 33 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 34 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 35 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 36 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 37 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 38 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 39 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 40 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 41 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 42 of 44

C1



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 43 of 44



Regular Council Meeting September 6, 2022 Page 44 of 44

ICSR1




